
Agenda Item No.    3    

2020 Census Redistricting Task Force 
AGENDA PACKET CONTENTS LIST 

 
Date:    April 8, 2022  
Date:        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    RTF Meeting Minutes - April 2, 2022      
               
               

 
Prepared by:    John Carroll   Date:    April 5, 2022   
Prepared by:    John Carroll   Date:         
Prepared by:    John Carroll   Date:         



 
REDISTRICTING TASK FORCE 

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO 
MINUTES 

 
 

City Hall, Room 400 
(remote access provided) 

(remote public comment provided via teleconference) 
www.sfgovtv.org  

 
April 2, 2022 – 10:00 AM 

 
Special Meeting 

 
Members: Jeremy Lee, Jose Maria (Chema) Hernández Gil, J. Michelle Pierce, Matthew 

Castillon, Arnold Townsend, Lily Ho, Raynell Cooper, Chasel Lee, Ditka Reiner 
 
 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 
The Redistricting Task Force met in special session, in-person with remote access and 
public comment via telephone and videoconference, on Saturday, April 2, 2022. Vice 
Chair Ditka Reiner called the meeting to order at 10:10 a.m. 
 
On the call of the roll, Member Jeremy Lee, Member Hernández Gil, Member Pierce, 
Member Castillon, Member Ho, Member Cooper, Member Chasel Lee, and Vice Chair 
Reiner were noted present.  Chair Townsend was noted not present. 
 
A quorum was present. 
 
Chair Townsend was noted present at 10:24 a.m. 

 
2. Mapping 

 
Member Chasel Lee provided a presentation on mapping and public input, including an 
overview of the redistricting process, important criteria for redistricting, recognized 
neighborhoods and communities of interest, compactness, contiguity, census geography, 
and the next steps for the Task Force. Ana Flores, Deputy City Attorney (Office of the 
City Attorney); shared concerns about the Final Map deadline for the Task Force. Jaime 
Clark, Redistricting Consultant (Q2 Data and Research); answered questions raised 
throughout the discussion. 
 
Speakers: Geoffrea Morris; endorsed the 4D map and offered opposition to the 4A 4B 
and 4C maps as pertains to District 10. 

http://www.sfgovtv.org/


Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 2, 2022 
 
 

 Page 2 

Richard Rothman; requested that the Task Force divide Golden Gate Park more evenly 
between supervisorial districts, and requested that the Task Force not include the Seacliff 
of Presidio Terrace neighborhoods in District 1. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map. 
Oscar James; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 10 boundaries. 
Cheryl Thornton; defined the area of Potrero Avenue, 16th Street to the bay waterfront, 
Highway 101, Mansell Avenue to Bayshore Avenue, Geneva Avenue, Potrero Hill, 
Bayview Hunters Point, and Sunnydale as a community of interest, along with Jackson 
Park, the 3rd Street corridor, the Sunnydale Recreation center, the 4 HOPE SF sites and 
the Chase Center, and requested that the Task Force retain this community of interest 
wholly within District 10. 
Laticia Irving; endorsed the 4D map and defined the area of Potrero Avenue, 16th Street 
to the bay waterfront, Highway 101, Mansell Avenue to Bayshore Avenue, Geneva 
Avenue, Potrero Hill, Bayview Hunters Point, and Sunnydale as a community of interest 
and requested that the Task Force retain the area wholly within District 10. 
Reverend Dr. Carolyn Scott; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 10 
boundaries and defined the area of Potrero Avenue, 16th Street to the bay waterfront, 
Highway 101, Mansell Avenue to Bayshore Avenue, Geneva Avenue, Potrero Hill, 
Bayview Hunters Point, and Sunnydale as a community of interest and requested that the 
Task Force retain the community of interest wholly within District 10. 
Brenda Barros; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the Districts 10 and 11 boundaries. 
Jonathan Meade; requested that the Task Force not add the Seacliff and West Clay Park 
neighborhoods or the Lake Street corridor to District 1. 
Hillary Brown; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin, Central SOMA, and 
Treasure Island neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district. 
Tes Welborn; endorsed the 4D map with adjustments to the District 5 boundaries and the 
neighborhoods nearby to the Haight-Ashbury neighborhood, requested that the Task 
Force not add the Seacliff and West Clay Park neighborhoods or the Lake Street corridor 
to District 1, and suggested that the areas south of Sloat Boulevard not be added to 
District 4. 
Sarah Wolfish; endorsed the 4D map, requested that the Task Force retain the 
Tenderloin, Central SOMA, and Treasure Island neighborhoods together in one 
supervisorial district, and requested that the Task Force not divide the Cole Valley and 
Haight neighborhoods into multiple supervisorial districts. 
Maya; endorsed the 4D map and shared various concerns about the redistricting 
process. 
Jennifer Friedenbach, Executive Director (Coalition on Homelessness); endorsed the 4D 
map and requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin, Central SOMA, and 
Treasure Island neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district. 
Norm Degleman; endorsed the 4D map and endorsed the Community Unity map 
submitted by the SF Unity Map Coalition, and requested that the Task Force retain the 
Haight, Cole Valley, Panhandle, and Alamo square neighborhoods together in District 5. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 10 boundaries and defined the 
area of Potrero Avenue, 16th Street to the bay waterfront, Highway 101, Mansell Avenue 
to Bayshore Avenue, Geneva Avenue, Potrero Hill, Bayview Hunters Point, and 
Sunnydale as a community of interest and requested that the Task Force retain the 
community of interest in District 10. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 2, 2022 
 
 

 Page 3 

Alec Bash; endorsed 4A and 4B maps and the District 3 Neighborhoods United Plan 
map, and offered that the 4C and 4B maps could work with adjustments as pertains to the 
boundaries of District 3. 
Doug Comstock; shared various concerns about the boundaries of District 5. 
Don Misumi (Richmond District Rising); endorsed the 4D map with adjustments, 
endorsed the Community Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map Coalition especially 
as pertains to the District 1 boundaries, and requested that the Task Force not add the 
Seacliff and West Clay Park neighborhoods or the Lake Street corridor to District 1. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 10 boundaries and requested 
that the Task Force recognize the area of Potrero Avenue, 16th Street to the bay 
waterfront, Highway 101, Mansell Avenue to Bayshore Avenue, Geneva Avenue, Potrero 
Hill, Bayview Hunters Point, and Sunnydale as a community of interest and retain it 
wholly within District 10. 
Patsy; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 10 boundaries and requested that 
the Task Force recognize the area of Potrero Avenue, 16th Street to the bay waterfront, 
Highway 101, Mansell Avenue to Bayshore Avenue, Geneva Avenue, Potrero Hill, 
Bayview Hunters Point, and Sunnydale as a community of interest and retain it wholly 
within District 10. 
Marie Sorenson (Calle 24); requested that the Task Force make changes to the western 
boundary of District 9 to remain at Guerrero Street between 17th and 18th Streets. 
Erick Arguello (Glide); endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force retain 
the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district. 
Kevin Ortiz; endorsed the 4D map, requested that the Task Force include both sides of 
Valencia Street in one supervisorial district, and requested that the Task Force retain the 
Tenderloin, Central SOMA, and Treasure Island neighborhoods together in one 
supervisorial district. 
Anne; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin, 
Central SOMA, and Treasure Island neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district. 
Michael Rouppet; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Paul Aguilar; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force retain the 
Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district. 
Emily Lee (San Francisco Rising); endorsed the 4D map with adjustments and endorsed 
the Community Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map Coalition. 
Jason Henderson; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force retain the 
central neighborhoods of the existing District 5 together within the new District 5 map. 
Jason Li; endorsed the 4D map and offered opposition to the 4A, 4B, and 4C maps as 
pertains to the Haight neighborhood. 
Tab Buckner; endorsed the 4D map and the Community Unity map submitted by the SF 
Unity Map Coalition, and requested that the Task Force not break the central 
neighborhoods of the existing District 5 into multiple supervisorial districts. 
Theresa Imperial; endorsed the 4D map, requested that the Task Force not include the 
Financial District in District 6, and requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin 
and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district. 
Wussim Hage (Arab Resource Organizing Center); offered opposition to the 4A, 4B, 
and 4C maps and endorsed the 4D map with adjustments, and requested that the Task 
Force recognize the Arab community of the Tenderloin neighborhood with boundaries at 
Geary Boulevard and Polk Street and retain it wholly within one supervisorial district. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 2, 2022 
 
 

 Page 4 

Will Rostoff; offered opposition to the 4A, 4B, and 4C maps and endorsed the 4D map 
with adjustments as pertain to District 5, and requested that the Task Force not break the 
central neighborhoods of the existing District 5 into multiple supervisorial districts. 
Jessica Salinas; requested that the Task Force recognize the Japantown, Western 
Addition, North of Panhandle and Lower Haight neighborhoods and retain them together 
within one supervisorial district. 
Nona; requested that the Task Force not break the central neighborhoods of the existing 
District 5 into multiple supervisorial districts. 
Majeid Crawford; endorsed the 4D map, requested that the Task Force retain the 
Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district, and 
requested that the Task Force not add the Tenderloin neighborhood to District 5. 
Jamil Patterson; shared various concerns with the Task Force in regard to the process 
and impacts of redistricting on the communities of the city. 
Jupiter Peraza (Transgender Cultural District); requested that the Task Force recognize 
the cultural districts which have been established when drawing district lines and not 
separated or divide them among multiple supervisorial districts and requested that the 
Task Force retain the Tenderloin, Central SOMA, Treasure Island neighborhoods 
together in District 6. 
Gabby; endorsed the 4D map, and requested that the Task Force recognize the cultural 
districts which have been established when drawing district lines and not separated or 
divide them among multiple supervisorial districts, and requested that the Task Force 
retain the Tenderloin, Central SOMA, Treasure Island neighborhoods together in one 
supervisorial district. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin, 
Central SOMA, and Treasure Island neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map, requested that the Task Force recognize the area of 
Potrero Avenue, 16th Street to the bay waterfront, Highway 101, Mansell Avenue to 
Bayshore Avenue, Geneva Avenue, Potrero Hill, Bayview Hunters Point, and Sunnydale 
as a community of interest and retain it wholly within District 10, and shared various 
concerns with the Task Force regarding the redistricting process. 
Queen Vanessa; shared various concerns with the Task Force regarding the redistricting 
process. 
Curtis Bradford, Co-Chair (Tenderloin Peoples Congress); endorsed the 4D map with 
suggested that it will require various adjustments. 
Dena Aslani Williams (West of Twin Peaks Central Council); endorsed the 4D map, 
requested that the Task Force recognize the West of Twin peaks neighborhoods and 
retain them together in District 7 rather than District 4, and suggested that areas south of 
Sloat Boulevard be retained in District 7 rather than District 4. 
William Chionsini, President (Lakeshore Acres Improvement Club); endorsed the 4D 
map with adjustments and requested that the Task Force include the Lakeshore Acres 
neighborhood in District 7 rather than District 4. 
Carol Ann Rogers, President (Russian Hill Neighbors); requested that the Task Force 
recognize the Russian Hill neighborhood with a western boundary at Van Ness Avenue 
and requested that Russian Hill be included wholly within District 3. 
Lai Wa Wu; endorsed the 4D map with adjustments as pertains to the western border of 
District 3. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 2, 2022 
 
 

 Page 5 

Cynthia; endorsed the 4D map with adjustments to include the Inner Sunset in District 4 
and requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin, Central SOMA, and Treasure 
Island neighborhoods together in District 6. 
Fely Tchaco, Founder-President (African Arts Academy); endorsed the 4D map and 
requested that the Task Force include the Chase Center in District 10. 
Zachary Sexton; endorsed the 4D map and the Community Unity map submitted by the 
SF Unity Map Coalition, and requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin, 
Central SOMA, and Treasure Island neighborhoods together in District 6. 
Speaker; offered opposition to the 4A and 4D maps as pertains to the District 3 
boundaries, and requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin, Central SOMA, and 
Treasure Island neighborhoods together in District 6. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin, 
Central SOMA, and Treasure Island neighborhoods together in District 6. 
Eleanore Fernandez, Executive Director (Chinese Culture Center); requested that the 
Task Force recognize the voices of residents of Single Room Occupancy (SRO) hotels 
and retain them wholly within one supervisorial district. 
Amy Zoe; endorsed the 4D map with adjustments to recognize and preserve queer 
communities of color in in the Central SOMA and Tenderloin neighborhoods and 
requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff neighborhood in District 2 rather than 
District 1. 
Lisa Awbrey; requested that the Task Force recognize and retain the Haight, Japantown, 
Western Addition, Fillmore, Cole Valley, and other central neighborhoods of the existing 
District 5 together within the new District 5 map. 
Jill Shenker (San Francisco Rising); endorsed the 4D map and the Community Unity map 
submitted by the SF Unity Map Coalition and requested that the Task Force retain the 
Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district. 
Meg Heisler; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force retain the 
Tenderloin, Central SOMA, and Treasure Island neighborhoods together in one 
supervisorial district. 
Jaime Deloria; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force retain the 
Tenderloin, Central SOMA, and Treasure Island neighborhoods together in one 
supervisorial district. 
Jessie Johnson, Co-Chair (Tenderloin Peoples Congress); requested that the Task Force 
retain the Tenderloin, Central SOMA, and Treasure Island neighborhoods together in 
one supervisorial district. 
Barbara Gaynor; requested that the Task Force recognize the impacts of redistricting on 
the District 11 communities of interest. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force not make adjustments 
to the District 10 or 11 boundaries. 
Larry Griffin; requested that the Task Force recognize the Western Addition 
neighborhood with boundaries of Divisadero Street, Masonic Avenue, Fell Street, and 
Turk Street and retain it wholly within one supervisorial district including the Booker T. 
Washington Community Service Center. 
Chris Schulman (Lower Polk Community Benefit District); offered opposition to the 4D 
map as pertains to the Lower Polk neighborhood. 
Matthias Mormino; offered opposition to the District 3 Neighborhoods United Plan map 
and endorsed the 4D map. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 2, 2022 
 
 

 Page 6 

Rachel Lastimosa (SOMA Pilipinas); endorsed the 4D map, and requested that the Task 
Force retain the Tenderloin, Central SOMA, and Treasure Island neighborhoods 
together in one supervisorial district. 
David Woo (SOMA Pilipinas); endorsed the 4D map and offered opposition to 
the 4A, 4B, and 4C maps, and requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin, 
Central SOMA, and Treasure Island neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district. 
Marie; endorsed the 4B map and requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff 
neighborhood in District 1. 
Gloria Berry; endorsed the 4D map, requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin 
and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district, and shared 
various concerns with the redistricting process and impacts on the communities of the 
city. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin, 
Central SOMA, and Treasure Island neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district. 
Allan Samson Manalo; endorsed the 4D map with adjustments in reaction to public input 
and endorsed the Community Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map Coalition. 
Jake McGoldrick; requested that the Task Force not include the Seacliff neighborhood in 
District 1. 
Monica; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 10 boundaries requested that 
the Task Force recognize the area of Potrero Avenue, 16th Street to the bay waterfront, 
Highway 101, Mansell Avenue to Bayshore Avenue, Geneva Avenue, Potrero Hill, 
Bayview Hunters Point, and Sunnydale as a community of interest and retain it wholly 
within District 10. 
Paulina Behr; offered opposition to the 4D map. 
Igor; requested that the Task Force include the Lake Street corridor in District 1. 
Sarah Allen; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force recognize the 
communities of interest of the city and be open to having a more than 1% and less 
than 5% deviation between district populations. 
Candace Sims; offered opposition to the 4A, 4B, and 4C maps and requested that the 
Task Force move forward with the 4D map with adjustments to recognize and retain 
historically disadvantaged communities of interest in the city. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force recognize the Richmond neighborhoods and 
retain them together in one supervisorial district. 
Betsy; endorsed the 4B map and requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff 
neighborhood and Lake Street corridor in District 1. 
Katina Johnson; offered opposition to the 4B map as pertains to the neighborhoods of 
eastern SOMA including the East Cut and Mission Bay and South Beach. 
Kamala; requested that the Task Force recognize the residents of affordable housing in 
the eastern SOMA neighborhoods and retain them together in one supervisorial district. 
Eileen Boken (Sunset Parkside Education and Action Committee SPEAK); requested that 
the Task Force review the updated maps and community of interest statements submitted 
by SPEAK, which includes areas around the Stonestown shopping center and areas south 
of Sloat Boulevard in District 4. 
Alice Rogers (South Beach | Rincon | Mission Bay Neighborhood Association); offered 
opposition to the 4D map and endorsed the 4B map with adjustments, and requested that 
the Task Force recognize the neighborhoods of eastern SOMA and retain them together 
wholly within District 6. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 2, 2022 
 
 

 Page 7 

Luisa Antonia (Bayanihan Equity Center); endorsed the 4D map and requested that the 
Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together with SOMA 
Pilipinas in one supervisorial district. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force recognize the Jordan Park neighborhood and 
include it in District 1. 
Sophia Andary; endorsed the 4D map and the Community Unity map submitted by the SF 
Unity map coalition, and requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff and Presidio 
Terrace neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1. 
Steven Depant-Kelani Currier; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force 
consider McLaren Park and share it among multiple supervisorial districts. 
Bob Esfandiari; endorsed the 4B map with adjustments and requested that the Task 
Force include the Seacliff neighborhood and the Lake Street corridor in District 1 rather 
than District 2. 
Charles Head; endorsed the 4D map and offered opposition to the 4A, 4B, and 4C maps, 
and endorsed the map submitted by Christopher Bowman as pertains to the Sunset 
Heights neighborhood and nearby areas. 
Richard Ivanhoe; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the neighborhoods District 5. 
Sana Sethi (San Francisco Rising); endorsed the 4D map and the Community Unity map 
submitted by the SF Unity Map Coalition, and requested that the Task Force retain the 
Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district. 
Bruce Wolfe; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the Haight-Ashbury, Panhandle, Alamo 
Square, and Cole Valley neighborhoods. 
Robert Harrer; endorsed the District 3 Neighborhoods United Plan map and the 4B map 
as pertains to the neighborhoods of District 3 with a southern boundary of the district at 
Sacramento Street. 
Sally Stevens; endorsed the 4D map with adjustments to the Districts 4 and 7 boundaries. 
Jennifer Parkes; endorsed the 4B map as pertains to the District 3 boundaries and the 
Russian Hill neighborhood and Union Square. 
Ken Tray; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 9 boundaries, and shared 
concerns about the marginalized communities of the city and retain their voices in the 
redistricting process. 
Susan; endorsed the 4D map and observed that District 5 has had the smallest population 
change since the last census, and requested that the Task Force retain the communities of 
District 5 together in one supervisorial district. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff neighborhood in District 1 
rather than District 2. 
Justin Hoover, Executive Director (Chinese Historical Society of America); endorsed 
the 4D map and requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in District 6. 
Diana Taylor (Barbary Coast Neighborhood Association); endorsed the District 3 
Neighborhoods United Plan map and the 3B map as pertains to the District 3 
boundaries. 
Peter Warfield; endorsed the 4D map and shared various other concerns about the 
redistricting process and accessibility. 
Dr. Emily Murase, Executive Director (Japantown Task Force); requested that the Task 
Force recognize the Japantown community and retain it wholly within District 5 along 
with the Western Addition and Fillmore neighborhoods, and requested that the Task 
Force restore the Booker T. Washington Community Service Center to District 5. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 2, 2022 
 
 

 Page 8 

Russel Morine; endorsed the 4D map with adjustments and requested that the Task Force 
include the Visitacion Valley, Little Hollywood, Portola, and Sunnydale neighborhoods 
together in District 10. 
Laura; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Betty Louie (Chinatown Merchants Association); endorsed the District 3 Neighborhoods 
United Plan map and the 4B map as pertains to the District 3 boundaries, and requested 
that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in 
District 6. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4B map and requested that the Task Force include the Tenderloin 
neighborhood in District 5. 
Frank Noto (Sunset Community Democratic Club); endorsed the 4A map as pertains to 
the Inner Sunset neighborhood and the boundaries of Districts 4 and 7. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map with adjustments and requested that the Task Force not 
separate and divide the neighborhoods of District 5. 
Christin Evans; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the communities of District 5 and 
offered opposition to the 4A map. 
Theresa Flandrich; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Steve Huang (North Beach Neighbors); endorsed the 4B map as pertains to the District 3 
boundaries and the neighborhoods of Chinatown, and Russian Hill. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force make minimal changes 
to the District 5 boundaries to minimize the impacts of redistricting on the communities 
of District 5. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map. 
Ozzie Rohm; endorsed the Community Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map 
Coalition and the 4D map with modifications, requested that the Task Force not include 
the Seacliff neighborhood in District 1, not include the areas south of Sloat Boulevard in 
District 4, and to make minimal adjustments to the District 5 boundaries. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map with modifications to keep the Lakeshore Acres 
neighborhood in District 7 rather than District 4. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 5 boundaries. 
Ron Meyer; endorsed the 4D map with adjustments as pertains to the District 10 
boundaries and the Potrero Hill and Showplace Square neighborhoods. 
Steven Torres; endorsed the 4D map with adjustments to Districts 6 and 9. 
Anjelica Cabande (SOMCAN); endorsed the Community Unity map submitted by the SF 
Unity Map Coalition and the 4D map and requested that the Task Force retain the 
Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in District 6. 
Al Fontes, President (Telegraph Hill Dwellers); offered opposition to the 4D map as 
pertains to the Districts 3 and 6 boundaries. 
Qi Dai; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4B map. 
Ericka Zweig; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Speaker; suggested that the Sunnydale and Visitacion Valley neighborhoods be included 
in District 10. 
Gloria; endorsed the 4A map and offered opposition to the 4D map as pertains to the 
eastern SOMA neighborhoods. 
Bettina Cohen; endorsed the 4B map and offered opposition to the 4D map as pertains to 
the neighborhoods of eastern SOMA. 
Charles Rathbone; endorsed the 4B map as pertains to District 6. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 2, 2022 
 
 

 Page 9 

Julie Pitta; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff 
and Presidio Heights neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1. 
Jen Tse; endorsed the 4D map and shared various concerns with the Task Force in 
regard to the redistricting process. 
Amy (Better Housing Policy); endorsed the 4B map as pertains to the District 10 
boundaries and requested that the Task Force include the Visitacion Valley, Portola, and 
Sunnydale neighborhoods together in District 10, and endorsed the 4C map as pertains 
to the District 4 boundaries. 
David Elliott Lewis; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force retain the 
Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in District 6. 
John DeCastro; endorsed the District 10 unity map and the 4D map with adjustments as 
pertains to District 10, and requested that the Task Force include the Visitacion Valley, 
Little Hollywood, Portola, and Sunnydale neighborhoods together in District 10. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the boundaries of District 6, requested that 
the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one 
supervisorial district, and requested that the Seacliff neighborhood not be included in 
District 1. 
Rosaria Cervantes; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force include the 
Oceanview, Merced Heights, and Ingleside (OMI) neighborhoods in District 11. 
Todd Berman; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force not draw district 
lines which divide established cultural districts. 
James; endorsed the 4D map. 
Jean Barrish; endorsed the D4 map and requested that the Task Force include the 
Seacliff, Presidio Terrace, and West Clay Park neighborhoods in District 2 rather than 
District 1. 
Kathleen Courtney; endorsed the 4B map as a beginning point for the District 3 
boundaries and the Russian Hill neighborhood. 
Angela Jenkins; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 6 boundaries and the 
communities of interest in the area. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in District 6. 
Simon Timony (Advocates Eleven); endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task 
Force include the Oceanview, Merced Heights, and Ingleside (OMI) neighborhoods in 
District 11. 
David Hooper; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the Districts 6 and 11 boundaries, 
and suggested that the Inner Sunset and the areas south of Sloat Boulevard will need 
adjustment. 
Naomi; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force retain the Seacliff 
neighborhood in District 2, rather than District 1. 
Naj Daniels; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 10 boundaries and 
requested that the Task Force recognize the area of Potrero Avenue, 16th Street to the 
bay waterfront, Highway 101, Mansell Avenue to Bayshore Avenue, Geneva Avenue, 
Potrero Hill, Bayview Hunters Point, and Sunnydale as a community of interest and 
retain it wholly within District 10. 
Tricia; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the District 5 boundaries and the 
neighborhoods around the Golden Gate Panhandle. 
June (Better Housing Policy); endorsed the 4B map as pertains to the District 10 
boundaries and the 4C map as pertains to the District 4 boundaries. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 2, 2022 
 
 

 Page 10 

Carmela Sanchez; endorsed the 4B map and offered opposition to the 4D map, and 
requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA neighborhoods 
together in one supervisorial district. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4B map and requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin 
and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district. 
Steve Nakajo; requested that the Task Force recognize the Japantown community and 
retain it wholly within District 5 along with the Western Addition and Fillmore 
neighborhoods. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin 
and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in one supervisorial district. 
Speaker; requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff and Lake Street corridor in 
District 1 rather than District 2. 
Marlene Tran; endorsed the 4B map as pertains to District 10 and the 4C map as 
pertains to District 4. 
Keith Goldstein; endorsed the District 10 Unity map submitted by the Potrero Boosters 
and the 4D map with adjustments as pertain to the District 9 boundaries. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4B map as pertains to the District 10 boundaries and suggested 
that the Sunnydale and Visitacion Valley neighborhoods be included in District 10. 
George Wooding; endorsed the 4D map with adjustments to bring areas south of Sloat 
Boulevard into District 4. 
Lauren Girardin; endorsed the 4D map. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map. 
Regina Warshell; endorsed the 4D map as pertains to the vulnerable communities of the 
city. 
Alison Heath (Potrero Boosters Neighborhood Association); endorsed the District 10 
Unity map submitted by the Potrero Boosters and the 4D map with adjustments as 
pertain to the District 10 boundaries. 
Jenny Huang; endorsed the 4D map, requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin 
and Central SOMA neighborhoods together in District 6, and suggested that the Inner 
Sunset should be included in District 4. 
Madeline Trembley; endorsed the District 3 Neighborhoods United Plan map and the 4B 
map as pertains to the District 3 boundaries. 
Cliff Barker; requested that the Task Force keep the Potrero Hill and Dogpatch 
neighborhoods together in District 10. 
Dr. Theresa Palmer; endorsed the Community Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map 
Coalition and the D4 map, and requested that the Task Force recognize the Haight-
Ashbury, Panhandle, North of Panhandle, Western Addition, and Japantown 
neighborhoods as a community of interest and retain them together within District 5. 
Philippe Sonne; endorsed the District 3 Neighborhoods United Plan map and the 4B map 
as pertains to the neighborhoods of District 3. 
Adam; offered opposition to the 4D map and endorsed the 4B map as a starting point as 
pertains to the District 6 boundaries to the neighborhoods of eastern and southern 
SOMA. 
Betty; endorsed the Community Unity map submitted by the SF Unity Map Coalition and 
the 4D map and requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in District 6. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 2, 2022 
 
 

 Page 11 

Chuck Obermeyer (Mid-Market Neighbors); requested that the Task Force recognize the 
Mid Market neighborhood and retain it wholly within the Central SOMA and Tenderloin 
neighborhoods in District 6. 
Edward Wright, President (Harvey Milk LGBTQ Democratic Club); endorsed the 4D 
map and requested that the Task Force retain the Tenderloin and Central SOMA 
neighborhoods together in a future District 6 which includes all of the queer and trans 
serving cultural districts. 
Speaker; shared various concerns with the Task Force. 
Bruno Kanter, President (North Beach Neighbors); endorsed the 4B map as pertains to 
the neighborhoods of District 3 with a western boundary at Van Ness Avenue. 
May; endorsed the 4B map as pertains to the Portola and Visitacion Valley 
neighborhoods in District 10, and endorsed the 4C map as pertains to the District 4 
boundaries. 
Josephine; endorsed the 4B map as pertains to the Portola and Visitacion Valley 
neighborhoods in District 10. 
Kim Tavaglione (San Francisco Labor Council); endorsed the Community Unity map 
submitted by the SF Unity Map Coalition and the 4D map as a starting point for future 
iteration and adjustment. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map and requested that the Task Force include the Seacliff, 
West Clay Park, and Presidio Heights neighborhoods in District 2 rather than District 1. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map and the endorsed the District 10 Unity map submitted by 
the Potrero Boosters. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map as with adjustments in the area of Potrero Hill. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map and suggested that the boundaries of District 4 be moved 
to the east into the Inner Sunset neighborhood. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4B map as pertains to the Portola and Visitacion Valley 
neighborhoods in District 10, and endorsed the 4C map as pertains to the District 4 
boundaries. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map. 
Jim Warshell; endorsed the 4D map and suggested that the Seacliff be included in 
District 2 rather than District 1. 
Speaker; endorsed the 4D map. 

 
Chair Townsend recessed the meeting beginning at 12:59 p.m., and reconvened the meeting 
at 1:36 p.m. 

 
Chair Townsend recessed the meeting beginning at 5:14 p.m., and reconvened the meeting 
at 5:26 p.m. 

 
Member Hernández Gil, seconded by Member Jeremy Lee, moved that the 4A, 4B 
and 4C maps be laid on the table and the map 4D be moved forward for further 
consideration by the Task Force.  The motion carried by the following vote: 
 
Ayes: 8 -  Jeremy Lee, Hernández Gil, Pierce, Castillon, Ho, Cooper,  

Chasel Lee, Reiner 
 
Noes: 1 -  Townsend 
 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 2, 2022 
 
 

 Page 12 

At the request of Chair Townsend, Vice Chair Reiner assumed the Chair pro tem at 6:34 p.m. 
 
Chair Townsend was noted not present at 6:34 p.m. 
 
Vice Chair Reiner recessed the meeting beginning at 6:35 p.m., and Chair Townsend reconvened 
the meeting at 6:46. 
 
Member Castillon was noted absent at 7:00 p.m. and for the remainder of the meeting. 

 
3. Q2 Redistricting Consultants Update 

 
Jaime Clark, Redistricting Consultant (Q2 Data and Research); presented an update on 
the receipt of recent mapping and community of interest definition submissions. 
 
Speakers: David Elliott Lewis; shared various concerns about communications about 
communities of interest and maps. Peter Warfield; shared various concerns about the 
accessibility and functionality of the mapping and community of interest tools. Marlene 
Ahern; shared various concerns about the accessibility and functionality of the mapping 
and community of interest tools. Dr. Theresa Palmer; shared various concerns about 
communications about communities of interest and maps. Adam; shared various 
concerns about the accessibility and functionality of the mapping and community of 
interest tools. Jill Shenker (San Francisco Rising); shared various concerns with the Task 
Force. Virginia Smead; shared various concerns about the accessibility and functionality 
of the mapping and community of interest tools. 
 
At the conclusion of the discussion, Chair Townsend declared the matter heard and filed. 
 

4. Task Force Member Reports and City Department Representative/Public Official 
Reports 

 
Member Pierce reported that she recently met with advocates from Districts 5, 6, 7, 
and 11, Potrero Hill, the Bayview, Visitacion Valley, as well as advocates from the 
Tenderloin YMCA, SOMA Pilipinas, and the Coalition on Homelessness. Member Jeremy 
Lee reported that he recently met with advocates from the Tenderloin and Chinatown 
neighborhoods, the Tenderloin Boys and Girls Club, the Tenderloin Community Benefit 
District, advocates from the Latinx community, the Arab Resource Organizing Center, 
the Pacific Avenue Neighborhood Association, San Francisco Rising, and Equality 
California. Member Hernández Gil reported that he has recently spoken with advocates 
from nearly all elven supervisorial districts as well as advocates from the Tenderloin and 
SOMA neighborhoods, leaders in organized labor including the Labor Council, and 
reported that the office of District 6 supervisor Matt Haney has reached out for an 
update on the redistricting progress. Member Cooper reported that he met with NAACP 
on Sunday March 26, 2022, and met with advocates from the Pacific Avenue 
Neighborhood Association, the Russian Hill Neighborhood Association, SOMA Pilipinas, 
San Francisco Rising, and spoke with the reporters from Mission Local. Member Ho 
reported that she recently spoke with District 7 supervisor Myrna Melgar and the 
reporters from the SF Standard. Member Chasel Lee reported that he recently met with 
advocates from the Valencia Corridor Merchants Association, the Alice B. Toklas 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 2, 2022 
 
 

 Page 13 

LGBTQ Democratic Club, District 6 supervisor Matt Hany, and advocates from all 
eleven supervisorial districts. Vice Chair Reiner reported that she recently met with the 
Russian Hill Neighborhood Association, advocates for the Japantown neighborhood, the 
Cathedral Hill Neighborhood Association, and the Transgender Cultural District. 
Chair Townsend reported that he recently met with District 4 supervisor Gordon Mar, 
advocates from Districts 5, 10, and 4, and had a brief conversation about redistricting 
with District Attorney Chesa Boudin. 
 
Speakers: Marlene Ahern; shared various concerns about transparency with the Task 
Force. Peter Warfield; shared various concerns about transparency with the Task Force. 
David Elliott Lewis; shared various concerns about transparency with the Task Force. 
Cheryl Thornton; made various recommendations of District 10 community leaders for 
the Task Force to contact. 
 
At the conclusion of the discussion, Chair Townsend declared the matter heard and filed. 
 

5. Impacts of Redistricting on Neighborhood Resident Housing Preference Program 
Applications 

 
Due to the late hour, The Task Force did not receive a presentation from the Mayor’s 
Office of Housing and Community Development (MOHCD) on the subject of the 
Neighborhood Resident Housing Preference Program (NRHP). Through arrangements 
made by Member Jeremy Lee, the Task Force will receive a presentation in writing from 
MOHCD on the potential impacts of redistricting on the NRHP program. Upon receipt, 
the document will be available to the public on the Task Force website and through the 
Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors. 
 
Speakers: Peter Warfield; shared various concerns with the Task Force in regard to 
document access. Jen Tse (League of Women Voters San Francisco); shared various 
concerns with the Task Force. Cheryl Thornton; requested that the Task Force recognize 
the residents of public housing and their needs when undergoing the redistricting effort. 
Theresa Flandrich; requested that the Task Force recognize the potential impact of 
redistricting on the neighborhood preference program and applicants for NRHP housing. 
Bruce Wolfe; requested that the Task Force recognize the impact of redistricting on the 
neighborhood preference program and applicants for NRHP housing. Marlene Ahern; 
requested that the Task Force recognize the impact of redistricting on the neighborhood 
preference program and applicants for NRHP housing. Bernard; requested that the Task 
Force recognize the impact of redistricting on the neighborhood preference program and 
applicants for NRHP housing. Raquel Redondiez (SOMA Pilipinas); requested that the 
Task Force recognize the impact of redistricting on the neighborhood preference 
program and applicants for NRHP housing. 

 
At the conclusion of the discussion, Chair Townsend declared the matter heard and filed. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 2, 2022 
 
 

 Page 14 

 
6. Approval of Minutes from Special Meetings of March 18 and 21, 2022 

 
Chair Townsend inquired whether any Member had any corrections to the Minutes of the 
March 18 or 21, 2022, special meetings of the Redistricting Task Force. John Carroll, 
Clerk, indicated he would make clerical corrections to the capitalization and spelling of 
several names appearing on the March 18, 2022 Minutes. 
 
Speaker: Bruce Wolfe; shared various concerns with the Task Force on the order of 
agenda items. 
 
Member Cooper, seconded by Member Chasel Lee, moved that the March 18 
and 21, 2022, meeting minutes be APPROVED.  The motion carried by the 
following vote: 
 
Ayes: 8 -  Jeremy Lee, Hernández Gil, Pierce, Townsend, Ho, Cooper,  

Chasel Lee, Reiner 
 
Absent: 1 -  Castillon 
 

7. Resolution Making Findings to Allow Teleconferenced Meetings Under California 
Government Code, Section 54953(e) 

 
Speakers: Peter Warfield; Bruce Wolfe; Marlene Ahern; shared various concerns about 
the form of the resolution making findings to allow teleconferenced meetings under 
California Government Code, Section 54953(e). 
 
Member Chasel Lee, seconded by Member Jeremy Lee, moved that the Resolution 
be ADOPTED. The motion carried by the following vote: 
 
Ayes: 8 -  Jeremy Lee, Hernández Gil, Pierce, Townsend, Ho, Cooper,  

Chasel Lee, Reiner 
 
Absent: 1 -  Castillon 
 

8. General Public Comment 
 
Speakers: Jennifer Parkes; thanked the Task Force for their service. Curtis Bradford, 
Co-Chair (Tenderloin Peoples Congress); thanked the Task Force for their service. 
David Elliott Lewis; thanked the Task Force for their service and listening to the public. 
Josephine; thanked the Task Force for their service and listening to the public. Peter 
Warfield; shared various concerns with the Task Force. Marlene Ahern; shared various 
concerns about accessibility and proximity to power in the redistricting process. 
 
At the conclusion of the discussion, Chair Townsend declared the matter heard and filed. 



Redistricting Task Force Meeting Minutes April 2, 2022 
 
 

 Page 15 

 
9. Future Agenda Items 

 
There were no future agenda items offered. 
 
Speaker: Peter Warfield; requested a discussion item on accessibility of Task Force 
documents, the Brown Act, and the Sunshine Ordinance. 
 
At the conclusion of the discussion, Chair Townsend declared the matter heard and filed. 
 

10. Adjournment 
 

There being no further business, the Redistricting Task Force adjourned at the hour 
of 8:20 p.m. 
 
N.B. The Minutes of this meeting set forth all actions taken by the Redistricting Task 
Force on the matters stated, but not necessarily in the chronological sequence in which 
the matters were taken up. 


